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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Welcome to today's

          3  Hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name is John Liu. I have the

          5  privilege of Chairing this Committee.   We've

          6  convened this Hearing for the purpose of hearing

          7  testimony on Intro. 541, a bill that would allow

          8  commercial vehicles to have more than one row of

          9  seats.

         10                 Intro. 541, introduced by Council

         11  Member Rosie Mendez, who we will hear from shortly,

         12  would deem a motor vehicle to be a commercial

         13  vehicle if it has commercial plates and is designed,

         14  maintained, or used primarily for the transportation

         15  of property, regardless of whether it has seats for

         16  passengers, in addition to the front seats.  Under

         17  the Department of Transportation rules, a commercial

         18  vehicle is generally not allowed to have a second

         19  row of seats.  Last year, recognizing the growth of

         20  commercial vehicles with more than one row of seats,

         21  the Department of Transportation passed a "rule" in

         22  January, 2006 allowing commercial vehicles to have

         23  more than one row of seats if the seating in a

         24  passenger compartment is separated from the cargo

         25  area by a partition.
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          2                 Intro. 541 would expand upon this

          3  rule change and eliminate the confusion about what

          4  is a legal commercial vehicle by eliminating the

          5  partition requirement.  Despite the DOT's rule

          6  change, some commercial vehicle owners have

          7  complained that they have recently been ticketed for

          8  having an extra row of seats in their commercial

          9  vehicles.  According to the Department of Finance,

         10  the fine for such violation is a hefty $115.00.

         11  There is also an issue of a mismatch between the New

         12  York City definition of a commercial vehicle and the

         13  definition under New York State Law.

         14                 I will turn over shortly to Council

         15  Member Mendez, but let me note that we originally

         16  were going to hear testimony on Intro. 544, which

         17  would increase the fines for commercial vehicles

         18  parked overnight in residential neighborhoods.  That

         19  Intro. will not be heard today for the simple reason

         20  that under State Law New York City is permitted to

         21  fine up to a certain maximum penalty, and we are

         22  already at that maximum penalty.  So, in order for

         23  the City to increase that penalty, that would take a

         24  change in State Law, and, therefore, it is not as

         25  relevant for us to have that Hearing on Intro. 544,
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          2  which is not to say that the issue is not important,

          3  it's just that we do not have the jurisdiction in

          4  this body.

          5                 I'd like to turn the floor over to

          6  Council Member Mendez for an opening statement on

          7  Intro. 541, of which she is the prime sponsor.

          8  Council Member Mendez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Good morning.

         10  First off I want to thank my Committee Chair,

         11  Councilman Liu, for his leadership and for holding a

         12  Hearing on Intro. 541, known as the "Commercial

         13  Vehicles Parody Act."  I also want to recognize Phil

         14  Hom, Counsel to the Committee, for his work on this

         15  legislation. Finally, I want to thank

         16  representatives from DOT, DOF, small business

         17  owners, and members of the public for coming today.

         18                 This Hearing presents an opportunity

         19  to learn more about a discrepancy in City and State

         20  Law that is hurting some of our City's small

         21  businesses and also figure out how we can change the

         22  law without creating another traffic problem.

         23                 According to the New York State

         24  Passenger and Commercial Registration Rules, the

         25  Department of Motor Vehicles may issue commercial
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          2  plates to vehicles regardless of seating capacity if

          3  their primary purpose is commercial use, yet until

          4  only recently the City Rules and Regulations stated,

          5   "A vehicle must be permanently altered by having

          6  all seats and seat fittings, except the front seats,

          7  removed in order to be considered a commercial

          8  vehicle for the purposes of parking, standing, and

          9  stopping rules."              In January of 2006,

         10  DOT rewrote the Rules to allow a commercial vehicle

         11  to have rear seating in the cab portion as long as

         12  the cab and the cargo area of the vehicle are

         13  separated by a partition.  Allowing commercial

         14  vehicles to have rear seating in the cab enables the

         15  company to carry both property and workers to a work

         16  site.  This dual capacity reduces the number of cars

         17  a company must drive to a job, which cuts down on

         18  fuel emission and lessens traffic congestion.  Also,

         19  only needing one company vehicle decreases

         20  additional transportation costs, savings that could

         21  go a long way for a small business.

         22                 This morning we will hear what impact

         23  the discrepancy in the City and State Law has had on

         24  our small businesses.  I also hope to learn how the

         25  City's change in rules to allow partitions between
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          2  cab seating and the cargo area is being implemented,

          3  because our office has received calls that even

          4  commercial vehicle owners following the new law are

          5  being ticketed.

          6                 The DOT reform to allow rear seating

          7  if a partition is in place seems like a step in the

          8  right direction, yet I'm still concerned that many

          9  other owners of commercial vehicles without

         10  partitions will bear the burden of parking tickets

         11  from the City because they are unaware of the

         12  discrepancy between State and Local Laws.  It seems

         13  incongruent for the DMV to issue commercial plates

         14  to vehicles with seats in the cab when they are not

         15  legally considered commercial vehicles within the

         16  New York City limits.

         17                 At the end of this Hearing I hope we

         18  can have greater clarity on what needs to be done to

         19  eliminate this discrepancy.  It certainly is not my

         20  intention to worsen the existing parking or traffic

         21  situations in this City, but hopefully we can pass a

         22  bill that strikes a balance between good

         23  transportation policy and taking an unfair burden

         24  off small businesses.

         25                 Finally, let me be clear that only
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          2  small businesses who transport goods should benefit

          3  from this bill.  This legislation is not for taxis

          4  or luxury vehicles.  If that is not clear in the

          5  bill now, then we will make the necessary changes to

          6  make it so.  Thank you very much, and thank you Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          9  Member Mendez. We've also been joined by Council

         10  Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn.

         11                 At this point, I'd like to invite the

         12  representatives of the Administration to the witness

         13  table, led by Deputy Commissioner David Woloch from

         14  the Department of Transportation; and the Honorable

         15  Mary Gotsopoulis, Chief Administrative Law Judge for

         16  the Department of Finance; and David Stein the

         17  Deputy Director of the Office of Strategic Planning

         18  of the Department of Transportation.  Good morning.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Good

         20  morning.  Good morning Chairman Liu and Members of

         21  the Transportation Committee. My name is David

         22  Woloch, and I am the Deputy Commissioner for

         23  External Affairs at the New York City Department of

         24  Transportation. With me here today is, to my left,

         25  David Stein, Deputy Director of DOT's Office of
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          2  Strategic Planning, and to my right, Mary

          3  Gotsopoulis, Chief Administrative Law Judge at the

          4  Department of Finance.   Thank you for the

          5  opportunity to discuss Intro. 541, which would amend

          6  the definition of commercial vehicles for the

          7  purposes of parking, standing, and stopping, to

          8  include all vehicles with commercial plates

          9  regardless of whether or not the vehicle contains

         10  more than one row of seats.

         11                 Commercial vehicles are integral in

         12  ensuring the flow of commerce throughout New York

         13  City.  Accordingly, the Department seeks to ensure

         14  that these vehicles are able to operate in the most

         15  efficient manner, serving their function without

         16  compromising safety, or the other uses of our

         17  streets.  As you all know, curb space, especially in

         18  commercial districts, is a valuable commodity.  To

         19  this end, the City grants certain privileges to

         20  commercial vehicles for the purposes of parking,

         21  standing, and stopping.  We limit the definition of

         22  commercial vehicle to include only those whose

         23  primary purpose is to transport goods.  These

         24  vehicles in particular require access and proximity

         25  to selected locations so they may efficiently load
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          2  and unload property during the course of business.

          3                 Accordingly, in addition to bearing

          4  commercial plates, these vehicles must have the

          5  registrants name and address permanently affixed on

          6  the side of the vehicle and must be altered to

          7  facilitate the transport of cargo or property.

          8  These specifications are necessary so enforcement

          9  agents can distinguish those vehicles whose primary

         10  purpose is to transport goods from other vehicles,

         11  as well as prevent the abuse of these privileges by

         12  cars, whose primary purpose is not to transport

         13  cargo.  Without the ability to make this

         14  distinction, vehicles for which other parking,

         15  standing, or stopping options are available, would

         16  be able to take valuable space away from those who

         17  depend on that space to conduct business.

         18                 However, as the Chair noted, since

         19  our rules were first adopted, advances have been

         20  made in respect to the design of commercial

         21  vehicles.  Formerly our regulations stated that all

         22  seats and seating fittings, except for the front

         23  seats, had to be removed for a vehicle to be

         24  considered "commercial" for the purpose of parking,

         25  standing, or stopping.  In response to concerns from

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  the public and our own understanding of changing

          3  trends, we identified that there was a legitimate

          4  class of commercial vehicles that were not

          5  recognized under these regulations.  These vehicles

          6  are typically classified as having a passenger cab

          7  with more than one row of seating and cargo area

          8  separated by a partition.  The presence of a

          9  separate cargo portion and modification of the

         10  vehicle made it apparent that the vehicle was being

         11  used primarily to transport goods.  Subsequently, we

         12  amended our rules to account for this new type of

         13  vehicle.  As of January 11, 2006 our rule allows

         14  vehicles to have additional rows of seats if they

         15  are designed with a passenger cab and a cargo area

         16  separated by a partition.

         17                 As written, Intro. 541 would afford

         18  the opportunity for additional vehicles, regardless

         19  of purpose, to take advantage of our commercial

         20  parking rules that are designated to only those that

         21  need such privileges to efficiently transport goods.

         22    While we support the intent of Intro. 541, we

         23  believe that our rule change effectively addresses

         24  prior concerns over newly manufactured commercial

         25  vehicles, while appropriately balancing the many
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          2  uses of our curb space.

          3                 Thank you for inviting us to testify

          4  before you today, and we'd be happy to answer any

          5  questions you may have at this time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Deputy

          7  Commissioner Woloch.  We have questions from Council

          8  Member Mendez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you

         10  Commissioner. First of all can you tell me what are

         11  the parking privileges that commercial vehicles

         12  receive.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         14  We, and we actually see a lot of this in this area

         15  downtown, have a regulation that says "No Standing

         16  Except Trucks Loading Or Unloading." There's a lot

         17  of that in Manhattan, as well as other parts of the

         18  City.  That space is specifically designated to

         19  allow for trucks, vehicles that are not commercial,

         20  for the purposes of parking, standing or stopping,

         21  can't use that space.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Is that all?

         23  What other additional privileges would distinguish

         24  commercial vehicles?  Like big significant ones.  I

         25  guess you can't go through everything.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          3  that's the primary one.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Okay.  In

          5  your testimony, in the last paragraph you say that

          6  Intro. 541 would afford the opportunity for

          7  additional vehicles regardless of purpose to take

          8  advantage of commercial parking rules that are

          9  designated only to those who really need those

         10  privileges.  How would that be so if it is a

         11  commercial, if it's a car that has a commercial

         12  plate, that has gone to DMV and gotten a commercial

         13  designation, how would these additional vehicles

         14  take advantage of the commercial parking rules?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right.

         16  I think the idea is that these "special privileges"

         17  are granted to these vehicles not because they're

         18  commercial per se, but specifically because there's

         19  an expectation that they're going to be engaged in

         20  loading and unloading of cargo.  So the idea isn't

         21  to allow a vehicle that has a commercial plate but

         22  just carries people, to have that "special

         23  privilege", but to give the special privilege to use

         24  truck loading and unloading space, and also, which I

         25  think I neglected to mention before, with the
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          2  exception of Midtown Manhattan, to double park if

          3  there's not space available on the block, again, for

          4  the purposes of loading and unloading.  And again it

          5  gets back at this issue that we have, that curb

          6  space is precious, there is very little of it

          7  available, and there's a lot of demand.  So I think

          8  the point of these rules is to single out these

          9  vehicles that have to load and unload cargo where it

         10  would be difficult for them if they can't get access

         11  on a particular block to actually perform that work.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Under current

         13  rules and regs is there a "time" for this loading

         14  and unloading, or once you get into a "No Parking

         15  Except Trucks Loading and Unloading" zone,  you can

         16  be there for half and hour, you can be there for

         17  several hours?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It's

         19  going to vary on the particular regulation on the

         20  block.  So for instance, in Midtown we've begun a

         21  program which we have now begun to expand, where we

         22  use muni meters in conjunction with commercial

         23  parking. And where trucks are allowed, again for the

         24  purposes of loading and unloading, are allowed to be

         25  in a spot for up to three hours, though they have to
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          2  pay for the right to do so and the fee increases

          3  over time, so it's more expensive in the second hour

          4  and even more expensive in the third hour.  In other

          5  parts of the City there is "Free" truck loading and

          6  unloading, and the hours for that would vary.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  You could

          8  leave the truck closed and go into the business to

          9  take care of any other business, right?  Signing of

         10  papers, you don't need to have an actual person

         11  inside the commercial vehicle while some of this

         12  business is taking place.  Is that correct?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That is

         14  correct.  The street storage, basically the rules

         15  say that when parking is not otherwise restricted, a

         16  commercial vehicle should not be left in excess of

         17  three hours.  So if they're conducting business in

         18  an area that does not exclude any other parking rule

         19  restrictions, if they are engaging in business,

         20  performing paperwork, that limit stays at three

         21  hours, and that is Citywide.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Commissioner,

         23  if you could tell me when DOT drafted the amendment

         24  to the rules allowing for the rear seating and why?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  It was in late 2005, and the rule was promulgated in

          3  early 2006.  The reason was that it had been brought

          4  to our attention by some business owners that this

          5  was a problem and they were unfairly being

          6  summonsed, and based on our own assessment, we acted

          7  accordingly and changed the rules.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Does DOT regs

          9  and rules define what "cargo area" is, and whether

         10  there is a minimum or maximum size requirement for

         11  the cargo area?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

         13  believe so.  I think it's just defined by using the

         14  word "partition," that there has to be a partition

         15  separating the passenger area from the cargo area.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Is there a

         17  specific definition for "partition?"

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

         19  believe so. I'm told, no.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Okay.  Under

         21  these regs a partition, since the regs came into

         22  effect, if someone had a commercial vehicle and

         23  didn't have a partition, could they themselves

         24  install some clear partition themselves, or would

         25  they have to go somewhere and have some work done to
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          2  have the car or the commercial vehicle outfitted for

          3  a partition?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

          5  think there's a specific way they would have to have

          6  that work done.  If there is a partition, there's a

          7  partition.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  When the

          9  Department decided to amend the rules and the regs

         10  to have a partition, what was the reasoning for

         11  that?  Was there a specific interest that the

         12  partition would achieve?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         14  it seemed to be a standard way that was actually

         15  being used in practice to separate a legitimate

         16  cargo area from a passenger area.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  That is the

         18  standard way here in the City, because the State has

         19  no such provision?  Is it that it was the standard

         20  here in the City and we wanted to maintain that

         21  standard?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         23  that it's the standard and the standard in practice

         24  and we wanted to have a rule that was grounded in

         25  the reality of what was happening out on the
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          2  streets, that there were legitimate commercial

          3  vehicles that were clearly being used for the

          4  purposes of moving cargo that were set up in this

          5  way.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Commissioner,

          7  many of my constituent small business owners in my

          8  District, I cover south of 35th Street between First

          9  and Fifth Avenue, and many of my constituents are

         10  still receiving summonses even though they do have a

         11  partition, and they do have a commercial vehicle

         12  plate.  What can be done to eradicate that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That's a

         14  good question. I'll turn that over to my colleague.

         15                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  Hi.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm sorry.  Judge

         17  could you identify yourself for the record, and

         18  speak into the mike.  Welcome to the City Council.

         19                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  Sorry.  Thank

         20  you.  My name is Mary Gotsopoulis.  I'm the Chief

         21  Administrative Law Judge for the Department of

         22  Finance.

         23                 Finance, if the person who receives

         24  the summons submits it for a hearing since the rule

         25  has been codified, dismissing the tickets that are
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          2  issued for that violation.  There are certain rules

          3  under Code 82 that are valid, and unfortunately even

          4  this exemption is issued under Code 82 violation,

          5  but if they are issued for a rear seat, which they

          6  are allowed to have with the partition, and they

          7  submit it for a hearing with their evidence, it will

          8  be dismissed.

          9                 So you did mention earlier that there

         10  were constituents in your area that have received

         11  such summonses, so I'm happy for you to have them

         12  call me or send them to me directly for a hearing.

         13  Since that time there have been people who have

         14  voluntarily paid the summonses that were wrongly

         15  issued the summonses.  Presently Finance is working

         16  on a protocol to see how we can go about dismissing

         17  those summonses and refunding the money back to the

         18  people who received those summonses.  That might

         19  take us a little longer because we are trying to

         20  determine, because right now we've concluded there

         21  are about 12,800 summonses that were issued for a

         22  Code 82 violation that are, including some that are

         23  validly issued.  So we would have to determine which

         24  ones were valid and which ones were issued

         25  specifically for this particular exemption under
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          2  Code 82.  That might take us a little time to figure

          3  out how we are going to do this.

          4                 However, the in the interim, if

          5  anyone has any constituent in their area that has

          6  received such a summons, please have them contact

          7  me.  They can call me, they can write to me, and

          8  we'll be happy to adjudicate those summonses.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Judge, you

         10  mention there were 12,800 summonses.  Was that

         11  correct?

         12                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Okay.  I

         14  certainly appreciate the City and the Department

         15  going back and checking and dismissing these

         16  summonses, and going back for the people who

         17  voluntarily paid them and reimbursing them for

         18  improper summonses, but there is another issue here,

         19  and I think that's the reason why I wanted to codify

         20  this and have some parody with the State.  It's

         21  because, particularly for our small businesses, for

         22  them to go in to request an Administrative Hearing

         23  to get these summonses dropped, takes time out of

         24  their businesses.  So then it becomes a call whether

         25  it's less expensive to pay the summons and more time
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          2  efficient to do that, or less expensive to keep

          3  fighting these, and it takes a toll on a lot of our

          4  small businesses.

          5                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  I do understand

          6  that.  I mean Finance does have other ways that you

          7  could submit for a hearing. You can do it by

          8  Hearings by Mail.  We also have Hearings by Web,

          9  where you can submit it via web.  I do understand

         10  that certain small businesses may not have data

         11  bases available to them, but they can do it by mail,

         12  and they would be adjudicated the same way that they

         13  would be done if they were coming in person.  I do

         14  understand though your issue that you don't want the

         15  summonses to be issued at all, but right now with

         16  those that have been issued we're trying to rectify

         17  the situation so that we're assuring that everyone

         18  was treated fairly and consistently across the

         19  board.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  If I can ask,

         21  I don't know who on the panel would answer this.  Is

         22  there a way to determine which tickets were issued

         23  by NYPD and which ones by DOT Enforcement Officers?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  DOT as

         25  of almost a year ago no longer has any enforcement.
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          2  So it's very unlikely that any of those would have

          3  come from DOT.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Okay.  So

          5  then all of these tickets were issued by the NYPD

          6  and those about 12,800 summonses were all issued by

          7  the NYPD, or should have been?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again, I

          9  think it was last July when a very small unit of DOT

         10  Parking Enforcement was transferred to the Police

         11  Department.  So if this is over the past year that

         12  the 12,000 represents, I suppose the possibility

         13  that a small portion were DOT, but if there are any,

         14  that number is very, very small.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Mr. Chair,

         16  I'm just going to ask two more questions, and then

         17  I'll turn it over to my colleagues and thank you.

         18                 How did DOT get the word out to small

         19  businesses about these owners and owners of

         20  commercial vehicles when you implemented the

         21  partition change?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         23  that's a great question.  I think it's an area where

         24  there is much more for us to do.  One of the issues

         25  that we've been sort of grappling with over the past
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          2  few years, and we've testified about this before

          3  before this Committee, is the more general

          4  information, the more general issue of information

          5  that businesses and truckers need to know about what

          6  the rules are regarding definitions of commercial

          7  vehicle, regarding where appropriate truck routes

          8  are, and I think, and we're the first ones to admit

          9  that over the years we have not done as much as we

         10  need to to make that information readily available

         11  for the truckers and for business owners.

         12                 One of the projects we've been

         13  working on is implementing recommendations that came

         14  from our Citywide truck study, including creating an

         15  office of Freight Mobility that's focused on goods

         16  movement issues, and part of their mission is to

         17  take a number of steps to get information to the

         18  truckers and businesses that previously we had not

         19  done as much as we needed to. As part of that

         20  effort, one of the things we've done is we've

         21  created a website www.nyc.gov/trucks, which tries to

         22  pull together all information regarding the rules

         23  and regulations that apply to moving goods in the

         24  City.

         25                 We've also begun to go to greater
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          2  lengths to distribute our truck maps and to work

          3  with trucking associations and the teamsters to get

          4  information out to, again to truckers and to

          5  business owners.  I think this is one of the many

          6  aspects of what is a very complicated system that we

          7  have not done as much as we can, as much as we need

          8  to, to communicate to business owners. One of the

          9  things that we are going to do is to, again working

         10  with the appropriate associations and using our

         11  website and other means, try to more effectively

         12  communicate what the different definitions of

         13   "commercial vehicle" are because it can be

         14  confusing and, again, I think the issue you've

         15  raised is an important one.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Commissioner,

         17  what remedy is available to a merchant who has a

         18  commercial vehicle who purchased it several years

         19  ago, now this new regulation is in effect, was never

         20  notified about a partition, would otherwise have

         21  gone and complied with the new regulations, and is

         22  now being issued summonses?  What remedy is there

         23  for this merchant?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  If

         25  they've received summonses that they should not have
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          2  received, the remedy is to go, as the Judge

          3  suggested, go to the Department of Finance.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Well, that's

          5  my point. Under the new regulation if they don't

          6  have a partition, they should get a summons.  When

          7  they purchased the vehicle, they complied with the

          8  laws.  Now the new regulation is in effect, they are

          9  unaware that there is this new regulation, otherwise

         10  they would have gone and put a partition in the car,

         11  and now they're getting summonses, and they only

         12  find out about it when they get the summons.  So

         13  what remedy is available to them if they were not

         14  informed about the regulation?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But I

         16  think prior to the rule change, they still would

         17  have been summonsed, its just that a vehicle, even a

         18  vehicle that had a partition according to the City

         19  rules, would not have been in compliance.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  So either way

         21  summonses would have been issued under the prior

         22  City rule?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Okay.  Thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          3  Member Mendez. We've been joined by Council Member

          4  Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan, Council Member

          5  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan, Council Member Joe

          6  Addabbo from Queens, and we had also prior been

          7  joined by Council Member Michael McMahon from Staten

          8  Island, and Council Member Vincent Ignizio from

          9  Staten Island, and Council Member Miguel Martinez

         10  from Manhattan.

         11                 I certainly want to thank Council

         12  Member Mendez for bringing up these issues and for

         13  introducing this bill, which I support the passage

         14  of.

         15                 Let's get real here.  What we're

         16  talking about, we're not talking about really the

         17  definition of a commercial vehicle.  I mean, any

         18  average person, a business owner or the average

         19  citizen on the street, if there's a commercial

         20  plate, that's a commercial vehicle, and there should

         21  be no different definition at the City level or the

         22  State level.  That's just to me common sense.  But

         23  what we're really talking about here are parking

         24  tickets that these small businesses are receiving

         25  because of a technicality that I don't even think is
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          2  relevant.  Because no matter what, it's not that

          3  these parking privileges are available to any

          4  commercial vehicle.  It's not.  These parking

          5  privileges are available only to commercial

          6  vehicles, and by that I think that a commercial

          7  plate should suffice.  The commercial vehicles whose

          8  owners or users are in the process of loading or

          9  unloading their vehicles.  That is the real criteria

         10  here.  We've got lots of small businesses that

         11  people are making deliveries in station wagons that

         12  have commercial plates.  There's no special

         13  partition, but are they engaged in a business that

         14  legitimately should be allocated some of the time in

         15  these "No Standing Except for Loading and Unloading"

         16  areas.  Sure they should.  There are people, I've

         17  got stores in my area delivering bagels and baked

         18  goods.  At some point in my career, early in my

         19  career, I used to deliver pizzas, and I did it using

         20  the back seat of a station wagon.  Was I entitled to

         21  use these loading areas?  Absolutely.  It may have

         22  been illegal, or may be illegal now, under the

         23  current regulations, but there's no real common

         24  sense that should prohibit someone like me

         25  delivering pizza or the local bagel shop making
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          2  their deliveries.

          3                 Let's use some common sense here.

          4  The idea of the partition may be that there is some

          5  sense that says you should have a partition

          6  separating the goods and the passengers.  I don't

          7  know. I haven't heard a single argument about safety

          8  here.  It's a technical change that the Department

          9  of Transportation went and implemented without any

         10  communication to the public, which, look it's a big

         11  City, it's a big government, we can't, and I don't

         12  fault you necessarily for not getting a flyer or

         13  letter out to every single small business in the

         14  City.  I don't fault you for that, but we have to

         15  understand why is it that we're making that kind of

         16  regulation change?  Does it actually really make

         17  sense at the end of the day?  Because what we're

         18  talking about are commercial vehicles that are using

         19  these zones for the purpose of loading and

         20  unloading.  They can't even be at these zones if

         21  they're not actively engaged in loading and

         22  unloading.  So the act of loading and unloading

         23  really doesn't have anything to do with whether

         24  there is a partition in the delivery vehicle or not.

         25
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          2                 So I would really ask the Department

          3  of Transportation to relook at that regulation and

          4  to work with us on passing a bill that makes sense.

          5  We can't simply take the regulation that was already

          6  promulgated by the Department of Transportation and

          7  codify that because the idea of the partition is not

          8  germane to whether a vehicle that has commercial

          9  plates recognized by the State of New York should be

         10  allowed to use a loading zone.  I mean that is just

         11  not germane.  So, let's sit down and let's figure it

         12  out.  You seem like you want to say something.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.  I

         14  was just waiting for you to finish.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Please.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         17  it's a question about, I think we all agree that

         18  this is valuable curb space, and we want to try to

         19  limit a portion of the City's curb space,

         20  particularly where there is commercial activity

         21  happening, to be available for the purposes of

         22  loading and unloading.  The question is, where do

         23  you put that line?  I think you're suggesting that

         24  any vehicle with commercial plates we should assume

         25  that it's going to be in the business of loading and
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          2  unloading.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, that's not what

          4  I'm saying. I'm saying that if in fact they are

          5  engaged, if they have a commercial plate and they

          6  are engaged in the activity of loading and

          7  unloading, then they should be allowed to use that

          8  space.  The big problem we have at these loading

          9  zones is not these commercial vehicles, commercially

         10  plated vehicles that don't have partitions, the real

         11  problem actually would be commercial plated trucks

         12  that are clearly, they're not even in this gray

         13  area, they're clearly a delivery vehicle, but

         14  they're standing there all day.  They are taking up

         15  the space.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right.

         17  Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's a place that

         19  we should be looking at changing or beefing up the

         20  regulations, but to go after these, you know, what

         21  we're talking about are the smallest businesses that

         22  are using delivery vehicles that may not overtly

         23  appear to be strictly used for delivery purposes.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We're

         25  talking about those businesses, but I think the way
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          2  we're talking about them is those are the businesses

          3  that, and the ones who are legitimately engaging in

          4  the movement of goods, those are the ones who are

          5  going to be hurt if you expand the definition to be

          6  too large.  And that I think is essentially what

          7  you're proposing.

          8                 If every vehicle with commercial

          9  plates, because, again, according to the rules, a

         10  vehicle making a delivery, that driver can step into

         11  the place where the goods are being delivered and

         12  sign some papers for a few minutes and a Law

         13  Enforcement Officer walking by won't necessarily see

         14  that, so there has to be something about the vehicle

         15  that dictates where you put that dividing line.  And

         16  in an ideal world, we would always know, but it's

         17  not an ideal world and we have to, again, figure out

         18  a reasonable place to have the dividing line.  I

         19  think the path that we embarked on last year was to

         20  move that dividing line in a way that would

         21  encompass a larger universe of vehicles, again, with

         22  an eye towards the many small businesses that have

         23  this particular type.  I think that dividing line is

         24  now in a much better place. But if we were to go as

         25  far as you are suggesting, to the entire universe,
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          2  the entities that are going to be hurt are the ones

          3  legitimately engaging in delivering goods who aren't

          4  going to be able to find spaces.

          5                 So, look again, I think it's an

          6  important issue, one we're happy to continue to have

          7  a dialogue with you and think through.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But

         10  that's I think our assessment right now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, we can

         12  continue to talk about it, but I think just based on

         13  what you've mentioned, there would be two clear

         14  points of disagreement.  One that these very small

         15  businesses would actually be hurt if we continue to

         16  allow the same universe of vehicles to actively load

         17  and unload in these zones.  You're saying that by

         18  limiting the access to these, that we would actually

         19  help these very small businesses.  I think you'd be

         20  hard pressed to find any small businesses out there

         21  that would actually agree to that kind of assertion.

         22

         23                 Secondly, is that while I do

         24  appreciate that it is very scarce, curb space, and

         25  that we have to make sure that the users of this
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          2  limited and scarce curb space legitimately have a

          3  right to use a "purpose" in this case a "business

          4  purpose" to use that.  That by creating this

          5  partition requirement, which to me seems arbitrary.

          6  It doesn't seem like there is a real basis for a

          7  partition requirement.  Sure, you would be limiting

          8  the number of vehicles that have access to these

          9  loading zones, but it's an arbitrary limitation

         10  that's not grounded in a real, in some real purpose.

         11    Because, like I said before, there are so many

         12  vehicles that don't have this partition and they do

         13  have legitimate business purposes for using this

         14  scarce space.  So we don't, we shouldn't make it

         15  easier to access scarce space by limiting it for no

         16  real reason.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  There is

         18  a real reason. The partition requirement, again, is

         19  grounded in the nature of vehicles that are being

         20  manufactured and used out there.  Again, I think

         21  it's impossible to have that dividing line to be in

         22  a perfect place, but I think we're very close to it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I mean most station

         24  wagons they don't, they aren't manufactured with a

         25  partition.  Most cargo vans, whether they be the
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          2  small mini van type or the large types that could be

          3  converted to a 15- passenger van, most of those

          4  vehicles are not manufactured with partitions.  So

          5  when you say that, well that's why we implemented

          6  the partition rule, no, these vehicles are not

          7  manufactured with partitions.  These other vehicles

          8  that any small business owner would go out there,

          9  they buy a station wagon, they buy a small mini van,

         10  they're not going to have a partition.

         11                 So for our City to implement this, to

         12  impose this kind of partition requirement, I think

         13  we have to really look at what we're doing here.  At

         14  the end of the day, it's not the partition, it is

         15  the act of "loading and unloading" that should allow

         16  a business to use these scarce curb spaces.  To the

         17  extent that we have to figure out how to more

         18  efficiently or more effectively issue the summonses

         19  for the trucks or the vehicles that are being parked

         20  there all day, and to figure out an even more

         21  efficient systems of adjudicating that process,

         22  let's figure it out.  But I think we have to get

         23  real about this partition requirement.

         24                 Okay, I think that does it for the

         25  testimony except for the questions.  But since we
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          2  have the honor of having the Chief Administrator Law

          3  Judge from the Department of Finance here, I figure

          4  let me take this golden opportunity to ask you a few

          5  questions.  If you think that it's not really

          6  germane to today's Hearing, please feel free to say

          7  so.

          8                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  That's fine.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, I really do

         10  appreciate your comments about how out of the 12,800

         11  summonses that were issued, we already know as a

         12  City government that some of those summonses should

         13  not have been issued.  Do we have any idea about,

         14  are we talking about maybe five percent of those

         15  summonses should not have been issued, or are we

         16  talking about something like 50 percent of those

         17  summonses?

         18                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  I don't know

         19  right now.  We're in the process of trying to figure

         20  out how we can go about, short of me pulling the

         21  12,000 summonses and checking all of them, as I

         22  indicated earlier, some of them are properly issued

         23  for the Code 81 violation, where the law requires

         24  that they have signage, including the name of the

         25  registrant and the address of the registrant on each
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          2  side of the door in three inch lettering,

          3  contrasting, so those would be properly issued.

          4  Then what I would have to do is actually verify each

          5  plate in DMV to determine which ones might have been

          6  the vehicles that shouldn't have been issued the

          7  ticket, versus the one that should have actually

          8  been issued the ticket. So it's going to take a

          9  little bit of work, and that's why I can't give you

         10  a specific number now as to what the number is in

         11  that universe.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well is

         13  there some kind of a rough time frame that your

         14  agency is working on?

         15                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  We've started

         16  doing this already.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         18                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  So, we're going

         19  to try to get through this as quickly as possible.

         20  I also urge everyone, encourage everyone, that if

         21  there is someone that you are aware of that may have

         22  been issued these summonses and shouldn't have been

         23  issued these summonses, please have them call my

         24  office directly. They can call me, they can e- mail

         25  me, they can send their plate number to me, and I'll
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          2  be happy to look into everything.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Just going

          4  back to something that both you and the Deputy

          5  Commissioner referred to earlier, the idea that law,

          6  actually, that allows small businesses to double

          7  park while they are making deliveries, outside, I

          8  think Deputy Commissioner said, outside Midtown

          9  Manhattan, last year, and this really has nothing to

         10  do with the Department of Transportation, so I don't

         11  want to think that they are on the hook for anything

         12  it really has to do with the way the police issue

         13  these summonses, last year the Finance Commissioner,

         14  Martha Stark, had testified about a program where

         15  we're trying to help small businesses, we're trying

         16  to let them off the hook for a lot of these double

         17  parking tickets.  The statistic cited by the

         18  Commission was that, right off the bat we know that

         19  25 percent of these parking tickets, specifically

         20  the double parking tickets issued to businesses

         21  while they're making deliveries, 25 percent of them

         22  would be dismissed, outright.  But of course that's

         23  if the business owners took the time to contest it.

         24                 To Members of this Committee and to

         25  many of my colleagues on the City Council, and to
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          2  the general public, it just offends the

          3  sensibilities that as a government we just go ahead

          4  and issue all these violations knowing full well

          5  that such a high percentage of the people would be

          6  found not guilty if they took the time and the

          7  expense of going through the adjudication process.

          8                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  You're correct,

          9  and that's why Finance implemented Delivery

         10  Solutions, which is the program that you're

         11  referring to.  That entitles business owners who

         12  engaged in expeditious commercial activity to

         13  register into the program and summonses that are

         14  issued for commercial violations that they would be

         15  allowed to park in violation of, they would be

         16  dismissed. Presently we have 440 companies that are

         17  registered in the program, and basically there is a

         18  set schedule.  They give us the plates they would

         19  like us to enter into the program, and they would

         20  pay according to the schedule.

         21                 Now, double parking, which allows, a

         22  commercial vehicle is allowed to double park as long

         23  as they are engaged in expeditious commercial

         24  activity, it's within a 30 minute rule, as long as

         25  there is no curbside parking available within 100
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          2  feet. But they would be allow to park there.  So,

          3  under the program, double parking is dismissed.

          4  There are other violations, "No Standing Except

          5  Trucks Loading and Unloading,"  those are dismissed

          6  in the program.

          7                 They're not all dismissed.  The way

          8  it's broken down is, the more stringent violations

          9  are referred to as "Red Codes" that would be like

         10  the fire hydrant violation, where a commercial

         11  vehicle will never be able to park in front.  Those

         12  right now are at 90 percent of the fines.  The

         13  reason that they are at 90 percent is that we were

         14  able to determine that 10 percent of all the

         15  summonses that are issued are defective summonses

         16  and would be dismissed.  We actively look at that

         17  rate because it has changed. When we initially

         18  started the program it was actually at 15 percent,

         19  and because NYPD is issuing the summonses more

         20  carefully now, they have the hand- held device, the

         21  defective rate actually decreased to 10 percent so

         22  we had to adjust that.

         23                 There are "Yellow violations", which

         24  are violations where if the individual came in for a

         25  hearing and they were able to show that they were
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          2  engaged in commercial activity, those might be

          3  reduced and so those are at 25 percent of the

          4  violations, plus the $15.00 surcharge.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Judge

          6  Gotsopoulis, I didn't mean to have you take us

          7  through the details of the program. I think the

          8  program is a laudable program, and that's what I

          9  said to Commissioner Stark last year.  But it still

         10  just doesn't sound right or smell right that we have

         11  this ticketing and enforcement procedure and then we

         12  kind of have like a back- ended way of helping the

         13  people who are getting all these ridiculous tickets.

         14    I say "ridiculous" because we know such a high

         15  percentage of them will be dismissed outright.

         16                 So my question to you is as a Chief

         17  Administrative Law Judge for the Department of

         18  Finance, is there, would you have any suggestions

         19  about how better we could either legislate or at

         20  least how better the enforcement actions can take

         21  place so that we don't have such a high rate of

         22  dismissible tickets in the first place?

         23                 I know that that's a very difficult

         24  question.  I haven't been able to come up with the

         25  answer, but I figure it's possible, I mean you
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          2  certainly have a great deal more expertise. So is

          3  there anything we could do just to cut down.  I

          4  mean, look, if we're accusing citizens of violating

          5  the law, and we're wrong two percent of the time,

          6  maybe even five percent of the time, I think as a

          7  society we can live with that, but to accuse

          8  citizens of breaking the law knowing full well that

          9  25 percent of the time we, the government, are

         10  wrong, that just doesn't seem right.

         11                 JUDGE GOTSOPOULIS:  I understand your

         12  concerns, and I'm actually happy to take these back

         13  to the Commissioner, Martha Stark, and discuss them

         14  with her and let her know what your concerns are,

         15  and we can get back to you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  But at the

         17  end of the day it's not, this is not where the

         18  Department of Finance would actually, I mean it

         19  really is with the adjudication process, I guess

         20  within the Department of Finance, but it's also with

         21  how we deploy the traffic agents and the, well not

         22  meter maids, but the Parking Traffic Enforcement

         23  Division, how they enforce the laws.

         24  But there just has to be a better way.

         25                 Okay.  Well thank you very much for
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          2  joining us this morning.  We'll look forward to

          3  having this discussion, but I think with this bill,

          4  we'd be happy to talk with you about it, but I think

          5  we wouldn't be able to simply codify what the

          6  regulations are.  Thank you.

          7                 We have a special treat right now.

          8  Let me ask our witnesses to come up.  We have Ed

          9  Feldman, who is in favor of Intro. 541, and Joshua

         10  Knoller, who is opposed to Intro. 541. Please come

         11  up to the witness table, and let me just announce

         12  that we have a special treat, we have some

         13  constituents of Council Member Sara Gonzalez, from

         14  Park Slope in Brooklyn.  The class, and Council

         15  Member Gonzalez is actually next door in the hearing

         16  right now, we invite you to go next door and say

         17  hello to her, quietly of course.  But a class from

         18  Junior High School 88 from Park Slope Brooklyn, lead

         19  by teachers, Maldonado and Escona.  Welcome to City

         20  Hall.

         21                 Now let's proceed with our witnesses.

         22  Why don't we ask Mr. Feldman to go first, and then

         23  Mr. Knoller.  Mr. Feldman please pull the mike up

         24  closer.

         25                 MR. FELDMAN:  I'm Ed Feldman.  I'm
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          2  from Mumbles Restaurant.  A substantial part of our

          3  operation is catering.  When we do catering we

          4  usually need two or three people to help set up and

          5  serve the luncheon or dinner.  Years ago when people

          6  were using station wagons for business purposes New

          7  York State passed a law requiring them to

          8  permanently remove the rear seats in order to make

          9  them comply with commercial registration.  In the

         10  past eight to ten years, the automobile

         11  manufacturers came out with a vehicle called a "crew

         12  cab," which is basically a pickup truck with a six

         13  foot bed.  They enlarged the cab portion to

         14  accommodate transporting workers to the jobsite.

         15  New York State then amended the previous law to

         16  allow these vehicles to be used commercially without

         17  removing the interior seats.

         18                 New York City is still issuing

         19  violations on these vehicles as unaltered vehicles,

         20  which at the same time voids their commercial status

         21  and, therefore, we are issued two violations.  I am

         22  enclosing copies of the Law for your perusal.  Over

         23  the years we've received thousands of dollars of

         24  violations.  We would very much appreciate it if you

         25  could remedy this situation.
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          2                 Thank you for your kind

          3  consideration.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

          5  important testimony and for your insight into the

          6  history of these regulations.

          7                 Mr. Knoller.

          8                 MR. KNOLLER:  Good morning everybody.

          9    I'm actually here on behalf of Samuel Schwartz,

         10  also known as Gridlock Sam, and President of the Sam

         11  Schwartz PLLC.  He apologizes for not being able to

         12  attend this meeting, so he sent me and I'm going to

         13  read his statement that he had regarding Intro. 541,

         14  and then I'll also add a little bit afterwards.

         15                 Chairman Liu and other distinguished

         16  Members of the Committee on Transportation, I

         17  apologize for being unable to attend today's Hearing

         18  regarding Intro. 541, therefore, I have prepared a

         19  written statement in advance on the issue.

         20                 Intro. 541, the way that I interpret

         21  it, means free parking for Lexus and Mercedes

         22  owners.  I recognize that this is an attempt to help

         23  small businesses, but it will backfire.  This

         24  regulation is opening a huge loophole that will

         25  allow scammers to park in truck loading zones.  In
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          2  other words, the Council would be simply fixing one

          3  problem and creating another.  Intro. 541 states,

          4   "Notwithstanding any other law, rule or regulation,

          5  any motor vehicle bearing commercial plates and

          6  designed, maintained, or used primarily for the

          7  transportation of property, or for the provision of

          8  commercial services, shall be deemed to be a

          9  commercial vehicle, regardless of whether or not

         10  such vehicle contains seats for passengers in

         11  addition to the front seats."  Intro. 541

         12  reinterprets "commercial vehicle" to include cars

         13  with backseats, meaning a return to the bad old days

         14  when luxury car owners merely got commercial plates

         15  and parked throughout Midtown and other business

         16  districts with impunity.

         17                 Currently, Lexus, Mercedes, and other

         18  luxury car owners are not recognized as commercial

         19  vehicles for the purposes of parking, even if they

         20  have commercial plates.  Anybody can get commercial

         21  plates with any car, as DMV never inspects the cars.

         22                 However, if a car owner wants to beat

         23  the system, he would register the car with

         24  commercial plates.  He can then park anywhere a

         25  truck can, even double park in certain areas.  I am
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          2  sure the City Council never intended for the law to

          3  allow this, but the bill as currently constructed

          4  would provide a loophole wide enough for a Hummer to

          5  drive through.

          6                 Therefore, I urge the Members of the

          7  City Council to vote "no" to Intro. 541.  I'd be

          8  happy to address any questions the committee might

          9  have.

         10                 I just want to add one other thing,

         11  too.  I believe that Sam would support this bill if

         12  there was something to address that loophole.  I

         13  firmly believe that.  I'd be happy to take any

         14  questions back to Sam on the issue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, thank you

         16  very much.  We've read Sam's comments in his column

         17  yesterday, and I think that certainly is a

         18  legitimate concern.  We always take Sam's words

         19  seriously.  We could add a clause into the bill that

         20  would not change our intent of the bill, that would

         21  say basically that this is for the provision of

         22  commercial services, other than for the

         23  transportation of persons.  I think that your

         24  comments on behalf of Sam are, well some of it would

         25  require some further documentation or demonstration
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          2  that it is in fact the reality.  Are we really

          3  getting that many people with Mercedes and Lexus

          4  just applying for commercial plates for the purpose

          5  of being able to park in loading zones?  Or is that

          6  a little bit extreme?

          7                 MR. KNOLLER:  Well, this comes from

          8  Sam's days when he was in charge of Parking

          9  Enforcement, and based on the letters that he gets

         10  from readers on his column, and all that kind of

         11  stuff, he believes that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It turns out that I

         13  pay very close attention to what's happening in

         14  truck loading zones.  I've got a number of them in

         15  my area in Flushing.  I certainly pay attention to

         16  them where ever I see them in Brooklyn, or

         17  Manhattan, or other Boroughs.  I just don't recall

         18  seeing any Lexus or Mercedes with commercial plates.

         19                 So I understand the colorful argument

         20  that's being made here, but what we're trying to do

         21  is get down to the facts. The facts are that there

         22  are many small businesses that use vehicles, and

         23  they don't have this partition because the partition

         24  just doesn't come with most vehicles.  Nowadays, as

         25  Mr. Feldman noted in his testimony, there are
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          2  vehicles that are being manufactured with the seats

          3  that are helpful.  It's perfectly fine for a small

          4  business not only to be transporting their

          5  employees, but on Sundays when they may be closed,

          6  to be transporting their family members.  But that

          7  doesn't entitle them to use these loading zones for

          8  that purpose.  Those loading zones are only to be

          9  used, commercial plate or not, only when the

         10  activity of loading and unloading is being

         11  undertaken.  That's what these loading zones are

         12  for.

         13                 So, I just think that this partition

         14  requirement is, it doesn't really, there's no real

         15  grounding.  I'd love to get Sam's comments on that.

         16  So if you take it back, I'll try to give him a call

         17  later, or if he wants to give me a call.

         18                 Again, why the partition requirement?

         19  We would be, and I understand his and the DOT's

         20  point that we would be reducing the number of

         21  vehicles that would have access to these loading

         22  zones thereby making more access to the vehicles who

         23  legitimately should be at these loading zones, but

         24  we are limiting, in my opinion, the number of

         25  vehicles that have access to these zones
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          2  arbitrarily, without a real reason to set the limit

          3  or the cutoff at the point of whether a vehicle has

          4  a partition or not.  It's just seems so arbitrary.

          5                 Council Member Mendez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Mr. Feldman,

          7  how much have you been fined due to your commercial

          8  vehicle being parked in a commercial zone?

          9                 MR. FELDMAN:  I don't have exact

         10  figures on it, but I know over the years it's many,

         11  many thousands of dollars.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Yours is a

         13  small business? About how many people do you have in

         14  your employ?

         15                 MR. FELDMAN:  It's a restaurant.  How

         16  many people do we employ?  Is that what you said?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  More or less.

         18                 MR. FELDMAN:  About 50 to 60.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Mr. Feldman,

         20  do you have a partition on your vehicle?

         21                 MR. FELDMAN:  Yes.  This is a crew

         22  cab, it's made, it's a pickup truck really, has a

         23  basic partition, with the transportation of goods in

         24  the rear part.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  How long have
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          2  you had this vehicle?

          3                 MR. FELDMAN:  This particular vehicle

          4  and previous ones, because we changed, for the past

          5  seven or eight years.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Of the

          7  thousands of dollars if you've been fined, how many

          8  of these summonses were issued after January of 2006

          9  when this partition rule was implemented?

         10                 MR. FELDMAN:  I don't have the exact

         11  number, but I did send copies to the Council Members

         12  of the recent ones, which would be in the last year

         13  and a half or so.  It's hard for me to give you an

         14  exact number.  Each ticket represents a double

         15  ticket, so it's $230.00 each occasion, and we've had

         16  as many as three a week, four a week, and then there

         17  would be a week or two we would get none, and then

         18  you'd get another two.  You just never knew when it

         19  was going to happen.  So I can't really give you

         20  exact numbers now, I don't have them, but it is

         21  quite a bit of money for a small business.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  So you've had

         23  your commercial vehicle for several years, several

         24  models of this.

         25                 MR. FELDMAN:  Same model, same type

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  of vehicle.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Were you

          4  informed as a commercial vehicle owner about the

          5  change in the regulation about the partition.

          6                 MR. FELDMAN:  Not at all.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I'm sorry.  I

          8  forget your name.  The person representing  --

          9  Josh?

         10                 MR. KNOLLER:  Joshua Knoller.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  You mentioned

         12  these Lexus and Mercedes, and have you seen, or has

         13  there been documentation of Lexus and Mercedes

         14  parked all day in commercial zones that are not

         15  commercial vehicles or that do have commercial

         16  plates?

         17                 MR. KNOLLER:  Personally I haven't

         18  seen that.  I think this is more of a forecast from

         19  Sam. In other words, saying that if Intro. 541 is

         20  passed the way that it is that this could happen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Yes.

         22                 MR. KNOLLER:  So it's more of a

         23  prediction in a sense.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Okay.  I

         25  don't think so, but I would like to go back and if
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          2  there is any ambiguity in law because certainly the

          3  last thing I want to do is have some kind of

          4  loophole out there for someone to take advantage of.

          5    This really is to protect the small business

          6  owners and to protect people like Mr. Feldman who

          7  can't spend his days fighting summonses when he

          8  should be running his business.

          9                 MR. KNOLLER:  And Sam would agree

         10  with that and he would be more than happy to work

         11  with you guys on this bill.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I look

         13  forward to it, and I look forward to working with my

         14  Chair.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         16  much.  I want to thank you for spending your time

         17  with us today.  There being no other witnesses, this

         18  Hearing of the City Council's Committee on

         19  Transportation is adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            53

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, DIANE STURM, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 7th day of June 2007.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          DIANE STURM

                                                            54

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, DIANE STURM, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              DIANE STURM

         23

         24

         25

